Kiley, Kevin

From: Barbara Waite <bawaite@assembly.pe.ca> '
Sent: Tuesday, October 3, 2017 7:49 AM

To: ' Kiley, Kevin

Subject: RE: Interview Notes

Thanks for getting back to me.

Barbara

Barbara A. Waite, CPA, CA

Audit Director

Office of the Auditor General

Province of Prince Edward Island>>> "Kiley, Kevin" <kevin.kiley@mcinnescooper.com> 10/2/2017 9:26 PM >>>

Hi Barbara,

I reviewed our records and did not find contracts with Edelman or Murray Marshall.

Kevin

From: Barbara Waite [mailto:bawaite @assembly.pe.ca]
Sent: Tuesday, September 26, 2017 10:31 AM

To: Kiley, Kevin <kevin. kiley@mcinnescooper.com>
Subject: RE: Interview Notes

Good Morning Kevin;

I am following up to see if you have any further information on contracts for Murray Marshall and Edelman?
Thanks

Barbara

Barbara A. Waite, CPA, CA

Audit Director

Office of the Auditor General

Province of Prince Edward Island> > > "Kiley, Kevin" <kevin.kiley@mcinnescooper.com> 9/21/2017 1:.01 PM >>>
Ok I will have a fook.

From: Barbara Waite [mailto:bawaite @assembly.pe.ca}
Sent: Thursday, September 21, 2017 12:55 PM

To: Kiley, Kevin <kevin kiley@mcinnescooper.com>
Subject: Re: Interview Notes

Hi Kevin;



| just have a point of clarification on your response to the interview.

In question 6(a) of our interview we asked if there were contracts signed with Edelman, Murray Marshall and Dickinson
Wright. You responded that you were pretty sure there were contracts with Murray Marshall and Edelman. These
contracts were hot included in the information provided to us.

Could you please confirm whether contracts exist and if so, please provide a copy of each contract.
Thanks

Barbara

Barbara A. Waite, CPA, CA

Audit Director

Office of the Auditor General

Province of Prince Edward Island>>> “Kiley, Kevin" <kevin.kiley@mcinnescooper.com> 9/6/2017 1:36 PM >>>
Barbara,

Attached is a pdf of my comments in relation to the interview notes. If it would be helpful to have my response in
word format, please advise.

Thanks.

Kevin

Kevin J. Kiley

Board Director/Partner

Mclnnes Cooper

MCIE"\!NES tel +1 (902) 629 6262 | fax +1 (902) 368 8346 | mobile +1 (902) 568 9636

CO@DER 141 Kent Street, Suite 300 Charlotietown, PE, C1A 1N3

asst Patricia Flemming | +1 (902) 628 6269

From: Barbara Waite [mailto:bawaite@assembly.pe.ca}
Sent: Friday, June 2, 2017 2:13 PM

To: Kiley, Kevin <kevin.kiley@mcinnescooper.com>
Subject: Interview notes

Good Afternoon;

As indicated at our meeting on May 18, 2017, | am attaching the interview notes for your review. Please let me know if
these notes adequately capture our discussion.

Thanks

Barbara



Barbara A. Waite, CPA, CA

Audit Director

Office of the Auditor General
Province of Prince Edward [sland

Statement of Confidentiality

This message (including attachments) may contain confidential or privileged information intended for a specific
individual or organization. If you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately. If you
are not the intended recipient, you are not authorized to use, disclose, distribute, copy, print or rely on this email, and
should promptly delete this email from your entire computer system.

Déclaration de confidentialité

Le présent message (y compris les annexes) peut contenir des renseignements confidentiels a lintention d'une personne
ou d'un organisme en particulier. Si vous avez recu la présente communication par erreur, veuillez en informer
I'expéditeur immédiatement. Si vous n'étes pas le destinataire prévu, vous n'avez pas le droit d'utiliser, de divulguer, de
distribuer, de copier ou d'imprimer ce courriel ou encore de vous en servir, et vous devriez le supprimer complétement

de votre systéme informatique.

Notice This communication, including any attachments, is confidential and may be protected by solicitor/client privilege. i is intended only for the
person or persons to whom it is addressed. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender by e-mail or telephone at Mcinnes
Cooper's expense. Avis Les informations contenues dans ce courriel, y compris toute(s) piéce(s) jointe(s), sont confidentielles et peuvent faire 'objet
d'un privilege avocat-client. Les informations sont dirigées au(x) destinataire(s) seulement. Si vous avez regu ce courriel par erreur, veuillez en aviser

l'expéditeur par courriel ou par téléphone, aux frais de Mcinnes Cooper.




E-gaming/Financial Services Platform VFM 2016

Interview Mclnnes Cooper
Date: May 18, 2017
Present: Kevin Kiley, Barbara Waite, lennifer Bowness

The purpose of this interview is to clarify documentation received from Mclnnes Cooper.

*************************************************************************************

General Engagement Information

1. Based on our review of various documents, including invoices, and on discussions with others,
it is our understanding that Mclnnes Cooper first began working with the PEl Government and
MCPEI on the E-Gaming initiative in February 2010.

a. Isthis correct or is there a different date?

Correct date February 2010.
b. How was this work initiated?

i gf_‘af"@the Delta with-Wes Sheridan, Don
_DBHMacKenzie discussed a possible

- Mr. Kiley was-provid
initiative. NJCREI had 3
Jelley regarding’a.gaminginitiative.

-

~:‘-f:_;:Thgy were engaged by MCREY at this meeting at the Delta. There was no engagement

letten.

",

- The?‘d_dh(ic usually I'igive a written engagement letter.
- ltis nof‘tyéliea,lr,_ta;si"gn a retainer letter.
- There was nq retainer letter signed for this file with MCPEI.

d. What was the time frame for this engagement?

- Mr. Kiley opened a file soon after this meeting in February 2010.

e. What was the purpose of the non-disclosure agreement between yourself and MCPEI?
Would this relationship not be covered under solicitor client privilege? If not, why?
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interview Mcinnes Cooper
Date: May 18, 2017
Present: Kevin Kiley, Barbara Waite, Jennifer Bowness

- It was unusual to sign an NDA, This discussion would not be covered under solicitor
client privilege until they were engaged and agreed to take on the special project.

2. Given the various services that you provided as members of the working group why would
you not have had an engagement letter or contract for the various professional services
provided to the government of PEl and specifically the Minister of Finance?

- Mr. Kiley said they weren’t providing services to government.
- Even as early as that first meeting, government indicated they would have their own legal

counsel which he indicated turned out to be Carr Stevensoﬁ‘end MacKay.

3. In your letter dated September 22, 2016, you |nd|cated that you acted as legal counsel to

MCPEI and MCPEl and the government were workmg together on an initiative. However, in
your correspondence to government you mdlcated you were retamed to assist the
Government of PEl and MCPEL. Further, Mclnnes Cooper was contractmg third parties on
behalf of government and was present at meetmgs and, prov:dmg adwce to all parties. Based
on these arrangements there would be potentlal for confhct Why would you not have

documented these relationships to prbtect all partles mVolved'?

- Mclnnes Cooper was engag by MCP only Whether they were talking to government or
MCPE| the goal was comp!etlon of the prolect
- There was an understandmg ‘that v CPE] would be made whole (by government). Mclnnes
“was. adVISEd of that, by MCPEIard relied upon that. ,
- There Was no questlon that, Mclnnes Cooper was putting pressure on government to get
pa':d but if they did not get pald by government they would be out of luck.
- The chances of a loss' were slim With a government commitment to MCPE!.

a) Who gave~thié-assurenc;es to MCPEI?

TN g
AR

Mr. Kiley was not stite.

4. Early on in the e-gaming initiative, Barb Stevenson was engaged by government and was
present at some of the initial meetings in 2010. This relationship ended by the summer of
2010 and then the Minister did not have any legal counsel with the exception of internal
lawyers that performed some work on the legislation/regulations. Former elected officials and
other senior officials in government, including Wes Sheridan, indicated that at a minimum
your firm was providing project management services to government. Other officials indicated
that it was their understanding that Mclnnes Cooper was also providing legal representation
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Interview Mclnnes Cooper
Date: May 18, 2017
Present: Kevin Kiley, Barbara Waite, ennifer Bowness

to government on this initiative. What discussions were had regarding the relationship
between government and Mcinnes Cooper?

- Mr. Kiley indicated that he was advised Government’s lawyer was Bill Dow as well as Barb
Stevenson until about fall of 2010. They met with the working group from time to time.

- He indicated he was not sure who government was talking to at any point in time.
Government has lawyers on staff as well as accountants, etc. He advised that government
did bring accountants to meetings. Mcinnes Cooper was dealing with MCPEI and trying to
advance a business deal for their client.

- There may not have been active communication at meetmgs with the Minister’s legal
people. Mclnnes Cooper did not know who government, "a&talklng to outside of the

meetings.

-In his mind, it was clear Mc!nnes Cooper was acting (

at the meeting “we can put
egal counsel to look at it.”

jm’:’dir y? (for example, Edelman was

port to Government so why didn’t government

\

Ré ommendatlons"' ame forward from different people and the group agreed that Mclinnes
Coope should reach. out to them

Patrick Orr=There wa]s an understanding that regardless of which model was followed there
would need‘to be IeglsJatlon and regulations drafted. Frank Cantania started the work but
he worked out of the U.S. so his regulation work was not relevant to Canada. The initial
understanding was “that the Legislative Counsel Office would do it. Shawn Flynn would do
the drafting. MCPEI shared information with him but it did not go anywhere because he had
no time. Mclnnes Cooper thought about drafting the legislation but did not feel they had
the ability to produce what was needed.

Shawn Flynn recommended Patrick Orr as he had expertise in aboriginal governments and
the Legislative Counsel Office had used his services in the past. Mcinnes Cooper reached
out to him and he sent his CV. He had capacity to work on it so he was engaged.
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interview Mcinnes Cooper

Date: May 18,2017

Present: Kevin Kiley, Barbara Waite, Jennifer Bowness

Edelman — Is a public relations firm and it was engaged based on dealings over time with
gaming companies and other provinces. The key person at Edelman had a lot of experience
in the gaming field.

Murray Marshall - lawyer - Kahnawake

He was identified as someone who represented the Kahnawake Gaming Commission.
Michael Tobin, of Continent 8, was an IT guy associated with Kahnawake. He brought
Murray Marshall to them as a lawyer with particular relevant expertise.

Dickson Wright was engaged by MCPEI early on prior to Me'l‘fr,).nes Cooper’s involvement to
the best of his knowledge. ’

6. a. Were there contracts signed for Edelman, Mu,rr._f;v:Marshal{,'"Di_ckinson Wright?
3 N,

Yes to Patrick Orr.
Pretty sure to Murray Marshall.
Pretty sure to Edelman.

- ,’The group met a, Iott gether Imtlally, agendas were prepared and a few point form
minutes were recorded After a time they stopped recording minutes.
- ‘The group met to; work on the file. To Mclnnes Cooper it was just a client file.

Murray Ma‘r'sﬁhall’s re,t'z'a'l_i:n"er was later in time towards the end due to Plan B becoming more
the focus. Heig an’expert in aboriginal gaming law. Mr. Kiley indicated they would have
probably sourced-his information along the way but there was no specific due diligence

report.

a. Did you receive any final reports from Edelman or Murray Marshall? If so, could we be

provided with copies?

Mr. Kiley stated there was ongoing advice but no reports.
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Interview Mclinnes Cooper
Date: May 18, 2017
Present: Kevin Kiley, Barbara Waite, fennifer Bowness

7. a. How did you come to enter into a consulting contract with Simplex? Who brought them
forward to you?

Simplex — McInnes Cooper met with a number of online operators in the industry anc
suppliers to on-line operators. Through that, they became aware of Simplex’s area of
expertise in payment processing. They needed assistance in that area so Simplex was
engaged.

b. In your invoices, due diligence was performed on Simplex and Paul Maines in the Fall of
2011. g
i.  Who asked you to perform this work? Why?

Simplex was identifi€
needed. %

- Mr.Kiley sald Jenkms was there with Simplex which was odd.

- He never saw' & "Malnes again. He remembers a meeting that it was reported to them
that Paul Maines. had a copy of the Simplex report and was trying to sell on it. The working
group was very upset and contacted Phillip Walsh. Walsh said he would take care of it.

- Mr. Kiley stated after they found out he had the Simplex report they did some searches to
get background. No report was prepared.




E-gaming/Financial Services Platform VFVI 2016
interview Mclnnes Cooper

Date: May 18, 2017

Present: Kevin Kiley, Barbara Waite, Jennifer Bowness

10.

11.

We were advised Paul Maines and Phillip Walsh were together at one meeting of the
committee.

a. Did Paul Maines meet with the committee at other times?
As indicated above, the working group had nothing more to do with Paul Maines.

b. What was your understanding of the relationship between Maines and Walsh?

No understanding of the relationship between Maines and Walsh.

¢. Paul Maines was in the community selling convertiglé bentures in CMT at this time.

familiar.

b. Onluly 19, 2011 we noted that the commlttee obtained and reviewed a copy of a report
prepared by Pat® Mason Why’ What was lt used for?

Mr.-KiIe_ywcouId‘not recall.

a. Were you concerned about how these contractors would be paid given you indicate
your .relai;lonshlp was Wlth MCPEI and not government?

: S

Mclnnes Cooper wasn tconcerned about paying contractors but the contractors were
concerned about gettmg paid. Some like Simplex were calling looking for their money.

We noted in the box of information there were some minutes prepared by Mike O’Brien for
the meetings held in Montreal in 2010. Were any other minutes of meetings prepared? If no,
why? If so, obtain copies.

There were only some point form minutes early in the process as indicated previously.



E-gaming/Financial Services Platform VFM 2016
Interview Mclnnes Cooper

Date: May 18, 2017

Present: Kevin Kiley, Barbara Waite, Jennifer Bowness

12. The loan for the project was not approved until November 14, 2011, and at that point in time
you had incurred $752,000, which did not include amounts owed to subcontractors.

a. Were you concerned that you may not receive the money owed to you or that the funding

would not be approved?

Mr. Kiley stated they were not overly concerned. Worse came to worse, they thought they
may have to write a cheque out of the general account of the firm.

- Getting paid for the year end was his concern becaus sults reporting fcr the firm was
on the calendar year.

13,

He beheves that the need eep the project below $1 million for 1IDI’s authorization level was
indicated to’ MCPEI by IIDI s contact was Don MacKenzie not government so he cannot speak

directly to this.s: i
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interview Mclnnes Cooper
Date: May 18, 2017
Present: Kevin Kiley, Barbara Waite, lennifer Bowness

14.

Travel

15.

16.

17.

Based on the invoices provided to government in support of claims made on the loan, we
completed a summary of the costs incurred by Mcinnes Cooper. Can you provide more
detailed information on the professional fees, specifically a breakdown of the legal fees vs the
project management fees, hourly rates, time spent etc.? (A.40.C - Per their invoices the total
is $1,489,429.72 of which $1,042,554.56 were for professional fees, $74,740.25 for travel,
$366,611.50 for consultants and $7,523.41 is for things like meals, copies, mail, board room)...

He stated they did not breakdown the professional fees by legal fees versus project
management fees. This would not be available. He could provide a breakdown of per hour
rates by the number of hours but he will need approval from his client.

By reviewing the time entries in the Mclnnes Cooper mvonces we have noted that members of
the committee attended the ICE Conference‘m London in both January 2011 and January

in total’ $72 740 of travel was bllled for on Mclnnes Cooper invoices. The costs related to
these trips* are shown on your invoices as a separate line item under disbursements. Do these

costs lnclude expenses for the entire group or just Mclnnes Cooper staff (show invoices re:
London X3 and Costa Rlca)?

_ Insome instances, it would cover Minister Sheridan. They may not have charged for all of
the Mclnnes Cooper people who attended.
- Don MacKenzie’s costs were covered.

- There would not be a detailed breakdown of the travel.
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Interview Mclnnes Cooper
Date: May 18, 2017
Present: Kevin Kiley, Barbara Waite, lennifer Bowness

PlanA,BandC

18.

19.

20.

In the August 8, 2011 Strategy Session slide presentation provided, we noted there is
descriptions provided for Plan A, Plan B and Plan C. This is the first reference we have to Plan
C. Was Plan C the plan that was presented at the meetings in February 20127

Plan A
- Compliant with the Criminal Code

- Gaming in PEl and MOU’s to allow gaming in other provinces.

Plan 8
- Aboriginal group asserting aboriginal rights under the itution.

Ilegal It was a COﬂStltUthﬂal

anything illegal.
Pian C
- International gaming.

Operators wished to be regulated to\ma
and to allow payment sources such as’

fth with the provinces for a long time. There had
il the gaming companies to PEL

A yvas there. Not a lot of time was spent on C.

] ey could get enough volume by having a few

pl’OV\_ > ‘mponent to get started and then continue to work
on more provmces They tho\" ght it would entice other provinces to join.

N

v scussmns and documents some people felt that Plan A was never going to
be viable. W“'__fe these dlscussxons held with the committee? At what point did Mclnnes
Cooper/Commlttee begm t6 pursue Plan B in earnest?

- A&B, paralief pafhs but most of the time was spent on A.

- He does not recall when they focused on Plan B in earnest.

is there a breakdown available of the professional fees incurred for each Plan (A, B and C)?

- No breakdown of Professional fees between Aand B. It was never segregated.
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Interview Mcinnes Cooper
Date: May 18, 2017
Present: Kevin Kiley, Barbara Waite, Jennifer Bowness

Work Subsequent to February Meetings

21, We understand that a decision was made on February 10, 2012 not to pursue the initiative.
From your invoices we can see that Mclnnes Cooper’s work on this file continued beyond the
meeting until June 2012.

a. What work was being done between February 10 and June 2012?

- February 2012 - word came from government that they weren’t prepared to
support Plan B. Government had consulted with Tom Isaac. Mcinnes Cooper
instructions came from MCPEI. o

- They first looked at responding to Tom isaac and had Murray Marshall involved in
these discussions. They found there was no-a ual oplmon from Isaac only a
telephone call.

- They looked for a business model that' could still make it.happen. Thisis where they

7

considered four provmces plus the ihtetnational gaming sude

N N
v N

N

mue? GOvernment? MCPEI"

b. Under whose authority did the work c6r

22.

a. Were you iﬁvQ'l‘\ied’i'nj discussing the establishment of a financial services hub with Phillip
Walsh. ifso, what was the nature of your involvement?

b. If so, under whose instruction were you pursuing the establishment of a financial services
hub?

Anything they were in contact with Phillip Walsh would be regarding a platform for E-
gaming only. They were not involved in anything other than E-gaming. Walsh could have
been just calling trying to collect his money.
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interview Mclnnes Cooper
Date: Mav 18, 2017
Present: Kevin Kiley, Barbara Waite, Jennifer Bowness

23. In June, Mcinnes Cooper met with Wes Sheridan which appeared to end any further activity.

a. What was discussed?
What was the discussion on the Atlantic Lottery Corporation involvement in the file?
What was decided?
- Mr. Kitey had no specific recollection of this meeting.

- ALC - Mr. Kiley said the Minister was exploring a mechanism where ALC could play a
role in this. He was not sure of the details.

24, In what capacity was Chris LeClair involved with the e-gaming file after October 20117

- Pretty much no involvement. .
- He was not hired by Mclnnes Coaper to work on the E- gammg\flle
- MCPEI was sensitive to a former government:person being mvol

d in this file, so they kept

his role minimal.

c¢. What discussmﬁ? \ efé had regarding the sale of a legal report to Atlantic Lottery

Commission to p'é’? some of the outstanding balance?

Mr. Kiley did not think they were involved in any of the discussions around obtaining

financing from government.
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Interview Mcinnes Cooper
Date: May 18, 2017
Present: Kevin Kiley, Barbara Waite, Jennifer Bowness

Loan / Grants:

26.

27.

The loan agreement between I1DI and MCPEI states that loan funds will be issued on the basis
of paid invoices. This was not what actually occurred and instead unpaid invoices were
accepted for the claims. What were your discussions with 1IDl when submitting these unpaid
invoices in the claims? Who advised you to submit unpaid invoices? '

Just mailed bill to MCPEI only, they were not involved in preparing the submission to 1IDI.

When we reviewed the claims made by MCPEI for drawdown.on the loan from IiDI to your
Lot
internal memo in September 2012 regarding invoices outstanding, we note discrepancies (for

example some contractors showing as being paid more than previously claimed)

Can you explain these discrepancies? Were all contractors paid'the amounts they were owed

(for example Patrick Orr and Murray Marshali? A implex cl%iivr\h’\i‘for full amount in

Maybe it was the timing of how the invoices we‘-re.;\s

Mclnnes Cooper sent their invoices‘t‘o‘-»M-C\F‘_’ I



With respect to the notes that you have provided to me, the following are my comments in
relation to same utilizing the numbering set out in the guestioning.

1.

(a) No further comments.

(b) The Non-Disclosure Agreement was not to discuss a potential business
relationship. Rather, we were asked to execute the Non-Disclosure Agreement
prior to being provided with information concerning which we were being
approached to provide legal services to MCPEL

(c) While we sometimes enter into retainer letters with clients, it is more common to
not have a retainer letter.

(d) No further comments.

(e) The Non-Disclosure Agreement was prepared by MCPEI in advance of, and
presented to us at, the first meeting. You would need to ask Don MacKenzie of
" MCPEI of his purpose in asking us to enter into a Non-Disclosure Agreement.
However, | assume we were asked to sign it in case we subsequently declined to

act for MCPEI! with respect to the matter.

We provided legal services to MCPEI, and any other services were ancillary to our legal
services to MCPEI. We did not provide professional services to government in relation
to the e-gaming initiative (“initiative”), so there was no reason to have an engagement
letter or contract with government. While there was a commonality of interest between
MCPE! and government, and the two parties worked towards common goals, we were
never engaged by the Minister, nor his department, to provide services to government in
relation to the initiative. Government subsequently confirmed with us on or about March
10, 2010 that they had retained the law firm of Carr, Stevenson & MacKay (“CSM") to
represent it in the initiative.

See my comments in #2 above.

The memorandum dated September 25, 2012, which you referred me to at our meeting
was not correspondence to government. It was an internal memorandum prepared to
allow for a discussion with government to provide a breakdown of the unpaid legal
invoices issued to MCPEI and unpaid project costs.

it was always clearly understood by MCPE! and the former Minister of Finance on
behalf of government that MCPEI was our client. It was also clearly understood that
funding would be provided by government to MCPE! to satisfy our invoices for
professional services and project costs.

As indicated in my letter of September 22, 2016, the Minister did not enter into a
relationship with our firm concerning the initiative. Rather, government entered into a
relationship with MCPEI to explore the regulation of online gaming, and our firm acted
as legal counsel to MCPEL  While the initiative was being pursued by MCPEI, there
were a number of communications between, and meetings involving, our firm and
representatives of government and third parties, and in all such communications and

27668762_1
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meetings, Mclnnes Cooper was representing and acting upon the instructions of MCPEI
to assist it in advancing the initiative.

When we were retained by MCPEI with respect to the initiative, MCPEI and government
had been working on the matter for some time. Soon after our retainer by MCPEI for
the initiative, MCPE! and our firm were advised by government that it had retained CSM
to provide it with advice and represent its interests in pursuing the initiative. During the
course of the initiative, we understood that government sought legal advice, both
internally and externally, beyond CSM. We understood that government sought and
obtained legal and other professional advice at such times as it deemed necessary. We
had no knowledge as to how, why or when the requests by government were made for
legal or other advice.

While we were retained to assist in the pursuit of the e-gaming initiative by MCPE! and
government, it was MCPEI, not government, who retained us. We were advised by
government at the original meeting that it was retaining CSM. If we had been retained
at the outset to represent government, then there would have been no reason for
government to retain CSM. We were never advised that CSM ceased fo act for
government with respect to the initiative (nor was that our experience), or that we were
being asked by government to take over representation of it from CSM.

We were not confracting with third parties on behalf of government. It was necessary to
contract with third parties as part of the initiative. Neither MCPEL, nor government,
wished to contract with third parties directly. Rather, we were asked as legal counsel to
MCPEI to contract with third parties. As stated above, it was clearly understood that
government would be providing funding to MCPEI for all such expenses. The language
“made whole” was language | used at our meeting, but those exact words were not
used by MCPEI or government.

(a) Don MacKenzie would be the person with that information.

4. Barb Stevenson and Bill Dow of CSM were retained by government with respect to the
initiative while we were retained by MCPEI. There were a number of direct meetings.
and exchanges of emails involving/with them as a result of CSM's representation of
government. Your suggestion that CSM'’s representation ended by the summer of 2010
is not consistent with our dealings with them in relation to the initiative. For example, I
believe that CSM had direct communications on behalf of government with MCPE! and
our firm into late October of 2010 dealing with the amendments to the Lotteries
Commission Act and later when that firm acted for 1IDI concerning the financing
provided to MCPEL Furthermore, it was never indicated to us, nor am | of the view, that
the Minister was ever without external legal counsel or that CSM did not remain retained
by government. In our meeting, ! indicated that at one point in time MCPE! and
government were discussing the preparation of a revenue sharing agreement. At a
meeting, we were asked if we would be able to draft a template for such an agreement
with MCPEI and government left to negotiate the terms directly with one another. We
advised MCPEI and the Minister that we would be able to draft a template, but that
government would need to have it reviewed by its legal counsel, CSM. It was

27668762 _1
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acknowledged by the Minister that government would need to do so. It was never
suggested that CSM was no longer representing government.

We do not know what transpired between CSM and government between these periods
of time. However, we believe that government sought and obtained legal and other
professional advice at such times as it deemed necessary. We have no knowledge as to
how, why or when the requests were made by government for legal or other
representation. It was always our understanding that the Minister and government were
consulting with CSM and other professional advisers as and when deemed advisable.

Mcinnes Cooper did not contract with third parties on behalf of government. Mcinnes
Cooper contracted with third parties to provide services to advance the initiative.

(8- No further comments.

(b) No further comments.

(c) Neither MCPEI, nor government, wished to contract with third parties directly.
There was concern by MCPEI and government that to do so would increase the
risk of the initiative becoming public before it was far enough advanced to
prevent the loss of “first mover advantage”. They were concerned that if a larger
province such as Ontario was aware of the level of advancement of the initiative
in PE!, then that province would move forward ahead of MCPEI and PEI.

Edelman was contracted to provide a communications strategy for the initiative
which included communications which would come from MCPE! and
government in announcing the initiative.

(a) No further comments.

(b) Those working on the initiative would have spoken over the course of the
initiative to people in the industry who were knowledgeable of service providers
who were relevant to the initiative. Members of the group would contact such
people for feedback on potential service providers and made decisions after
considering such feedback.

(c) | believe that Edelman produced either a draft or final form of a communications
strategy and that it was provided by us to your office.

(a) The reference in the notes provided should be to “The group met...” rather than
“Mcinnes Cooper met...". Although the group became aware of Simplex, |
believe that a representative(s) of Simplex may have attended a meeting of the
group without MCPEI, our firm, and perhaps even the Minister knowing in
advance that they would be attending. If this correct (and | am not certain), then
I don't recall who would have brought the Simplex representative(s) to the
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meeting. | don't believe that the group made an initial contact directly with
Simplex, but | am not positive.

(o) The reference to “crook” was probably not my actual thought at the time.
Rather, he seemed to be someone who was not genuine, and | was not left with
a favourable impression of him. | only recall him attending one meeting.

8. As previously indicated, there was no “committee”.

(a) { only recail him attending one meeting.

(b) No further comments.

(c) We only were aware that he had gone to see a local investment adviser and had
a copy of the Simplex report. When we did online searches concerning him after

learning of the meeting, we learned that he had been an investment adviser who
had gotten into trouble.

9. No further comments.

10. (a) it was understood from the outset that funding would be provided by government
to MCPE! to fund the initiative.

11. | am not certain whether the point form minutes were circulated to others working on the
initiative.
12. (a) We were not concerned because it was understood from the outset that funding

would be provided by government to MCPEI to fund the initiative.
(b) Same answer as #12(a) above.

13. (a) This information would be available from MCPEI and government who would
have negotiated the terms of the financing.

(b) We were advised that funding would be provided by government to MCPEIl to
fund the initiative.

©  No.
@ NA

14. We were providing legal services to MCPElL.  We were not providing project
management services separate and apart from legal services to MCPEIL. It is common
in large legal engagements for there to be a project management component to the
legal services.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

No further comments.

No further comments.

No further comments.

Plan B was the plan presented at the meeting in February 2012.

With respect to Plan B, the notes should read, “Aboriginal group asserting aboriginal
rights under the Constitution which would supercede other legislation.”

With respect to Plan C, it was the same as Plan A with the addition of jurisdictions
outside of Canada where interactive gaming is not strictly prohibited by law.i

No further comments.
No further comments.

In February of 2012, government advised MCPEI that it was not prepared to pursue
Plan B.

(@) With respect to the model, MCPE! and government continued to collaborate on
the possibility of proceeding with a scaled down version (with only a few
provinces) of Plan A or Plan C (I cannot recall which).

(b) MCPEI was our client. Both MCPE| and government continued to collaborate to
determine if the initiative could proceed with a few provinces.

(c) Same answer as #21(b) above.
(d) No further comments,

No further comments.

No further comments.

No further comments other than in reference to the line concerning sensitivity. It was
our firm that was sensitive. We did not want to create any concern on the part of our
client, MCPEI, by having a former government employee involved in its file.

(a) No further comments.
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(b) No further comments other than we had at the outset been advised that funding
would be provided by government to MCPE! to fund the initiative.

(c) No further comments.
26. We submitted our invoices to our client, MCPEI, in the normal course when rendered.

27. No further comments.
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SCHEDULE “B”

DOCUMENTS that are or were in my possession, control or power that | object to

producing on the grounds of privilege.

(1)  Solicitor-Client Privilege: Documents containing confidential professional
communications passing between the deponent, or the deponent's agent and the
deponent's legal advisers directly related to the seeking or receiving of legal advice or legal
assistance: including the contents of the file of the Defendant, Gary Scales with respect to

his representation of the MC PEL

(2) Litigation Privilege: Documents comprised of notes, memoranda, reports,
confidential correspondence, and copies thereof, prepared for the purposes of obtaining or
providing advice concerning this litigation, of obtaining or providing information and
evidence to be used in this litigation and preparing for and prosecuting this litigation; and
NIL

(3)  Without Prejudice Communication Privilege: Documents containing or reflecting
communications of a without prejudice nature concerning the matters in issue in this
litigation.

NIL
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DOCUMENTS that were formerly in my possession, conirol or power but are no longer in

my possession, control or power.

1. The originals of all letters and documents referred to in Schedule “A”, and “B”
which were sent or delivered by the Deponent to the person, firm and/or company to

whom they were addressed.



